
Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.

Please ask for:
Gurdip Paddan

* Reporting to Cabinet
31 July 2018

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL to be held on Thursday 9 August 2018 at 
7.30 pm in the Chestnut Board Room - Campus East.

Yours faithfully

Corporate Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance

A G E N D A
PART 1

1.  SUBSTITUTIONS 

To note any substitution of Committee Members in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules 19 – 22.

2.  APOLOGIES 

3.  MINUTES 

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 July 2018 
(previously circulated). 

4.  NOTIFICATION OR URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 
10 

Public Document Pack



5.  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS 

To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda.

6.  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS 

Up to fifteen minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions.

7.  SELF BUILD AND CUSTOM HOUSEBUILDING ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 
CONSULTATION (Pages 5 - 18)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) on 
the Self Build and Custom Housebuilding eligibility criteria consultation which took 
place from 17 May 2018 to 29 June 2018.  The report summarises the responses 
received to the consultation and makes recommendations as to the adoption of 
local eligibility conditions.

8.  RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION ON HERTFORDSHIRE LOCAL FLOOD RISK 
MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2 (LFRMS2) (Pages 19 - 34)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance), 
which briefly summarises the key principles of the Local Risk Management 
Strategy (LFRMS2) and sets out the key issues in the Council’s response. The 
response to the specific consultation questions is detailed in Appendix A to this 
report. 

9.  HATFIELD PARKING PROJECT (Pages 35 - 58)

Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 
on the Hatfield Parking Project, which has been added to the Capital Work 
Programme, to seek planning approval for the construction of a multi-storey car 
park (MSCP) in the Common, Hatfield.  This will release other sites within the town 
centre which have been highlighted as development opportunities by the multi-
agency Visioning Group as part of the Hatfield 2030+ project.

10.  SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION 

11.  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Panel is asked to resolve:

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 12 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended). 

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 



PART II

12.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN 

Circulation: Councillors S.Boulton (Chairman)
M.Perkins (Vice-Chairman)
A.Chesterman
J.Cragg
C.Gillett
S.Glick

G.Hayes
S.Kasumu
A Rohale
P.Shah
P.Zukowskyj

Co-opted Members:-
Tenants’ Panel Representatives

D.Fuller and R.Read

Corporate Management Team
Press and Public (except Part II Items)

If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Gurdip 
Paddan, Governance Services on 01707 357349 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

Part I
Main author: Julie Spicer/ Bryce Tudball
Executive Member: Cllr Mandy Perkins
All Wards

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 9 AUGUST 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 
GOVERNANCE)

SELF BUILD AND CUSTOM HOUSEBUILDING ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 
CONSULTATION 

1. Executive Summary

1.1 The Council (as a relevant authority) has a duty to maintain and publicise a Self-
build and Custom Housebuilding Register for (a) individuals and (b) associations of 
individuals, who are seeking to acquire serviced plots of land in the authority’s area 
for their own Self-build and Custom Housebuilding. Linked to this, the Council has a 
duty to grant permission for sufficient land suitable for Self-build and Custom 
Housebuilding to meet the demand on the register. 

1.2 Under Regulation 5 (2) of the Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Regulations 
2016, the Council may introduce a local eligibility test, including local connection 
and financial solvency criteria; and a fee for applicants to be entered onto and 
remain on the register.

1.3 On 5 October 2017 the Council’s Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel agreed to 
consult on the introduction of a local connection and financial resources test, with a 
view to this being introduced alongside the existing statutory eligibility criteria. In 
addition, the panel noted a draft proposal for a fee to be introduced for applicants to 
enter onto and remain on the register. 

1.4 A six week public consultation on the proposed introduction of a local eligibility test 
took place from 17 May 2018 to 29 June 2018. This report summarises the 
responses received to the consultation and makes recommendations as to the 
adoption of local eligibility conditions. 

1.5 In addition, following further consideration of the registration process, officers have 
developed a final proposal for the fee to be charged for applicants to enter onto and 
remain on the register.  A separate recommendation is made in regard to the 
introduction of this fee. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



- 2 -

2. Recommendation(s)

It is recommended that:

2.1 The Panel considers the results of the public consultation on the proposed 
introduction of a local eligibility test as set out at paragraphs 4.7 to 4.8 of this report 
and Appendix A..

2.2 The Panel agrees to recommend to Cabinet the introduction of local eligibility 
criteria for entry on to the Self-Build and Custom Housebuilding Register, proposed 
to take effect from 31 October 2018, as set out at paragraphs 4.16 to 4.17 of this 
report.

2.3 The Panel agrees to recommend to Cabinet for approval by Full Council the 
introduction of a fee of £25 for new applicants to enter onto the register, as set out 
in paragraphs 4.24 to 4.28 of this report, proposed to take effect from 31 October 
2018.

2.4 The Panel agrees to recommend to Cabinet for approval by Full Council the 
introduction of a fee of £25 for a new association to enter onto the register plus £10 
for each individual within the association excluding the lead individual, as set out in 
paragraphs 4.24 to 4.28 of this report, proposed to take effect from 31 October 
2018.

2.5 The Panel agrees to recommend to Cabinet for approval by Full Council the 
introduction of an annual fee of £15 for individuals to remain on Part 1 of the 
register, as set out in paragraphs 4.29 to 4.31 of this report, proposed to take effect 
from 31 October 2018.

2.6 The Panel agrees to recommend to Cabinet for approval by Full Council the 
introduction of an annual fee of £15 for each association plus £10 for each 
individual within that association to remain on Part 1 of the register, as set out in 
paragraphs 4.29 to 4.31 of this report, proposed to take effect from 31 October 
2018.

3. Background

3.1 The Council (as a relevant authority) has a duty1 to maintain and publicise a Self-
build and Custom Housebuilding Register for (a) individuals and (b) associations of 
individuals, who are seeking to acquire serviced plots of land in the authority’s area 
for their own Self-build and Custom Housebuilding. The Council must have regard 
to the Register when carrying out its functions relating to:

 Planning;
 Housing;
 The disposal of any land of the authority; and
 Regeneration.

3.2 Self-build and Custom Housebuilding is defined in the Self-build and Custom 
Housebuilding Act 2015 (amended by the Housing and Planning Act 2016) as:

“… the building or completion by (a) individuals, (b) associations of individuals, or 
(c) persons working with or for individuals or associations of individuals of houses to 

1 In accordance with the Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015 (the Act), as amended

Page 6



- 3 -

be occupied as homes by those individuals. But it does not include the building of a 
house on a plot acquired from a person who builds the house wholly or mainly to 
plans or specifications decided or offered by that person.”2

3.3 Consistent with the relevant Act and Regulations, since 1 April 2016 the Council 
has publicised and maintained a register of individuals and associations of 
individual who wish to acquire serviced plots of land to bring forward Self-build and 
Custom Housebuilding projects in the borough. The Register was formerly hosted 
externally on the Local Self Build Register website but in May 2017 a decision was 
taken to bring the hosting of the register in-house. A bespoke registration system is 
currently being designed to support the Council to deliver its duties. Registration is  
via the Council’s website: http://www.welhat.gov.uk/selfbuild  

3.4 On 31 October 2016, The Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Regulations 2016 
came into force3. One effect of the legislative updates was to introduce a duty on 
local authorities to grant permission for sufficient land suitable for Self-build and 
Custom Housebuilding to meet the demand for plots as evidenced by the number of 
entries on their register (measured in ‘base periods’) within 3 years. Alongside this, 
the opportunity was introduced for relevant authorities to set a local eligibility test 
(including local connection and financial solvency criteria); and a fee for applicants 
to be entered onto and remain on the register. 

3.5 Local eligibility tests means a set of conditions:

 The authority reasonably considers is necessary to demonstrate that an 
individual has sufficient connection with the authority’s area, a local connection 
test (with certain provision being made for persons in the service or previously 
in the service of the regular armed forces); and

 A financial solvency test whereby applicants would need to demonstrate that 
they have ‘sufficient resources’ to purchase land in the borough for their own 
self-build and custom house building project.

3.6 National Planning Policy Guidance states that it is for each local authority to 
determine the specific conditions that they will set. In designing a local connection 
test, the NPPG advises that relevant authorities may wish to consider criteria based 
on residency, having a family member residing in the local area and / or having an 
employment connection to the local area. In designing a financial solvency test, 
relevant authorities may wish to assess whether the applicant can afford to 
purchase the land required for their self-build project.

3.7 On 5 October 2017 officers presented to the Council’s Cabinet Parking and 
Planning Panel setting out proposals to consult on local eligibility conditions and to 
introduce a fee for applicants to enter onto and remain on the Register. The Panel 
agreed that the proposed eligibility conditions should be made available for a six 
week period for consultation and that officers would report the results of the 
consultation back to the Panel, together with a schedule of any recommended 
changes as considered appropriate. The Panel noted the draft proposal for a fee to 
be introduced and that a final proposal would be developed by officers and brought 
before it alongside the results of the consultation. 

2 Housing and Planning Act 2016 (Chapter 2, Section 9) had the effect of amending the Self-build and Custom 
Housebuilding Act 2015 : http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/22/section/9/enacted
3 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2016/105/contents/made

Page 7

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/selfbuild
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/22/section/9/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2016/105/contents/made


- 4 -

4. Explanation

4.1 Local eligibility criteria consultation: National Planning Policy Guidance states 
that local authorities should consider consulting on their proposed eligibility criteria 
although there is no statutory requirement to do so. In accordance with this advice, 
Welwyn Hatfield have carried out a six week public consultation on the introduction 
of the proposed local eligibility criteria and a financial resources test. The purpose 
of this was to obtain the views of interested parties on the proposals, to consider the 
responses received and to decide whether to adopt local eligibility tests and, if so, 
what form these should take.  The public consultation took place from 17 May 2018 
to 29 June 2018. 

4.2 The consultation was publicised in Issue 14 of the Council’s Local Plan Newsletter, 
which on 16 May 2018 was sent to 4,910 residents, businesses and key 
stakeholders registered on the Council’s Local Plan database. The consultation was 
also advertised in the Welwyn Hatfield Times and the Hertfordshire Mercury and a 
press release was prepared. 

4.3 The consultation: The consultation set out the Council’s proposed local connection 
and sufficient resources to purchase land criteria. 

4.4 In order to be eligible to enter into the Register, the consultation form set out that 
applicants would be required to meet one or more of the following four criteria and 
to be able to demonstrate this with appropriate documentary evidence.

i) Residency: To meet this criterion an applicant must have lived in Welwyn 
Hatfield Borough continuously for 5 years or more. 

ii) Family Connection: To meet this criterion an applicant must have close 
family (such as parents, siblings or children) who, on the date of their 
application to enter the Register, reside in the borough and have done so 
continuously for 10 years or more

iii) Employment: To meet this criterion an applicant must have been working in 
Welwyn Hatfield borough continuously for 12 months or more on the date of 
their application to enter the Register and have a permanent employment 
contract for 16 hours or more per week

iv) Armed Forces: The regulations make provision for existing members of the 
armed forces. In order to be eligible to enter the Register, former members of 
the regular armed forces would need to have left no more than 5 years ago.

4.5 In order to be eligible to enter the Register the consultation also set out that 
applicants must have access to sufficient financial resources to purchase land in 
Welwyn Hatfield borough for their own Self-build and Custom Housebuilding project 
and would be required to demonstrate this with appropriate documentary evidence.

4.6 The consultation form asked general questions about whether respondents agreed 
with each criterion, more specific questions in some cases, and a free form box was 
provided for consultees where they did not agree so that they could propose 
changes and explain why these were necessary. 

4.7 Consultation responses: One response was received to the consultation. This is 
summarised in Appendix A to this report. The respondent suggested that the 
introduction of local eligibility tests in Welwyn Hatfield could be contrary to 

Page 8



- 5 -

European legislation. Specifically, the response questioned the legality of 
introducing a local connection test requiring applicants wishing to join the Register 
to demonstrate that they have sufficient connection with the local area.  The 
respondent referenced the ”Flemish case” which was tested in the European Courts 
and referred to the experience of various Councils in Ireland with the use of local 
connection requirements in relation to decisions on planning applications

4.8 Having regard to the fact that the response raised a legal point, and in accordance 
with advice from the Council’s Head of Law and Administration, Counsel opinion 
was sought. The conclusion was that the representation does not raise any issues 
which prevent the adoption of a local connection test. The use of a local connection 
test is explicitly sanctioned by both primary and secondary legislation. Further, a 
person’s presence on the register is not a material planning consideration for the 
purposes of determining an individual planning application. This situation is 
therefore plainly distinguishable from the cases that the representation drew 
attention to.  

4.9 Justification for local eligibility criteria:  The Self-build and Custom Build 
Register is used by the Council to assess the demand in the borough for serviced 
plots of land for people to build their own home. The Self-build and Custom 
Housebuilding Act 2015 (as amended by the Housing and Planning Act 2016) 
places a legal duty on local authorities to keep a Register of individuals and 
associations of individuals who are seeking to acquire serviced plots of land in the 
authority's area for their own self-build or custom housebuilding. The local planning 
authority has a legal duty to grant sufficient development permission for enough 
serviced plots of land to meet the demand for Self-build and Custom Housebuilding, 
(based on the number of entries on Part 1 of the Register) under Section 10 of the 
Housing and Planning Act 2016.

4.10 Local Authorities who choose to set a local connection test are required to have two 
parts to their Register. Individuals or associations of individuals who apply for entry 
on the Register and meet all the eligibility criteria must be entered on Part 1. Those 
who meet all the eligibility criteria except for a local connection test must be entered 
on Part 2 of the Register. 

4.11 The duty to grant planning permission only applies to entries on Part 1 of the 
Register. The Council has to have due regard to Part 2 of the Register but does not 
have a duty to grant planning permission.

4.12 There is a high probability that the current number on the Register (312 as at 24 
July 2018) represents an overestimate of the true demand for self-build plots in the 
borough. The Council is aware of numerous individuals who have registered their 
interest for self-build in multiple local authority areas. On the basis that these 
individuals are only likely to be seeking one self-build plot this would result in a 
major overstatement of need at a regional/national level. Individual authorities are 
then impacted by having to plan for an inflated amount of self-build plots. 

4.13 The introduction of a local connection test will support the Council to reach a more 
informed view of the true demand for self-build plots in the borough. Similarly the 
introduction of a financial resources test will help ensure that the Register reflects 
true demand. 

4.14 Given the challenge of meeting the borough’s Objectively Assessed Need for 
housing, and the scarcity of non-Green Belt land for housing in the borough, it is 
considered wholly reasonable that the Council’s evidence relating to the demand for 

Page 9



- 6 -

provision of serviced plots should be as robust as possible. This in turn will help 
ensure that the scale of development permissions issued by the Council under its 
duties (set out in para 4.12) are broadly consistent with true demand for serviced 
self-build plots in the area.

4.15 Without the introduction of the local eligibility criteria proposed in this report, the 
Council may be in the position of having to ensure the provision of sufficient plots of 
land to meet the apparent demand from entries on the Register, which may be 
substantially over-inflated by applicants registering within a number of local 
authority areas or who may not have the financial means to purchase a plot of land 
should one become available. 

4.16 Introduction of local eligibility criteria: Officers have reviewed the proposed local 
eligibility criteria following the consultation and, in light of no objections and the 
criteria still being considered appropriate, propose to introduce the local connection 
criteria, with effect from the next base period, commencing on 31 October 2018. 
Applicants would have to meet one or more of the following criteria:

i) Residency: To meet this criterion an applicant must have lived in Welwyn 
Hatfield Borough continuously for 5 years or more.

ii) Family Connection: To meet this criterion an applicant must have close 
family (such as parents, siblings or children) who, on the date of their 
application to enter the Register, reside in the borough and have done so 
continuously for 10 years or more

iii) Employment: To meet this criterion an applicant must have been working in 
Welwyn Hatfield borough continuously for 12 months or more on the date of 
their application to enter the Register and have a permanent employment 
contract for 16 hours or more per week

iv) Armed Forces: The regulations make provision for existing members of the 
armed forces. In order to be eligible to enter the Register, former members of 
the regular armed forces would need to have left no more than 5 years ago.

4.17 Financial Resources: In order to be eligible to enter the Register applicants must 
also have access to sufficient financial resources to purchase land in Welwyn 
Hatfield borough for their own Self-build and Custom Housebuilding project and 
would be required to demonstrate this with appropriate documentary evidence.

4.18 Part 1 and Part 2 of the Register: Local Authorities who choose to set a local 
connection test are required to have two parts to their Register. Individuals or 
associations of individuals who apply for entry on the Register and meet all the 
eligibility criteria must be entered on Part 1. Those who meet all the eligibility criteria 
except for a local connection test must be entered on Part 2 of the Register. It is 
intended this will take effect from 31 October 2018 the Register will be divided into 
Part 1 and Part 2 in order to coincide with the base periods. 

4.19 Eligibility for Part 1 of the Register: The introduction of local eligibility and fee 
conditions, means that individuals or each member of an association will now be 
eligible for entry into Part 1 of the Register if that individual or each member of an 
association:

a) Is aged 18 or over;

Page 10



- 7 -

b) Is a British citizen, a national of an EEA State other than the United Kingdom, or 
a national of Switzerland; 

c) Is seeking (either alone or with others) to acquire a serviced plot of land in the 
relevant authority’s area for their own Self-build or Custom Housebuilding; and 
must

d) Satisfy the local eligibility conditions, including the local connection test and a 
financial resources test set by the council; and

e) Has paid the fee required to be entered onto or remain on the Register (see 
paragraphs 4.20 to 4.32 below)  

4.20 Eligibility for Part 2 of the Register: Applicants who do not meet the local 
connection test criteria will not be denied entry to the Register. Providing they meet 
the basic eligibility criteria of age, nationality and the intention to build their own 
home, they will be eligible for entry onto Part 2 of the Register. However, regard 
must still be paid to the applicants who are entered onto Part 2 of the Register.

4.21 Those entries already on the Register are exempt from the local connection test 
and will remain on Part 1 of the Register subject to them confirming their continued 
interest and paying the fee to remain on the Register, regardless of whether they 
would meet the additional criteria. 

4.22 Fee to enter onto and remain on the Register: Regulations4 now enable local 
authorities to charge a fee in respect of the Register. A person may be charged:

a) To be entered on the Register for a base period or part of a base period;

b) Thereafter, on an annual basis, to remain on that register irrespective of whether 
any fee was charged to be entered on the register.

4.23 Fees must be set on a cost recovery basis only. The amounts charged must be 
publicised and must be proportionate, reflecting genuine costs incurred and should 
not act as a deterrent for people to be entered on or remain on the Register. If an 
application is unsuccessful, any fee that has been paid must be returned.

4.24 Fee to enter onto the Register: Applications to enter the Register are made 
through a registration portal on the Council’s website (through the use of an 
application form for associations). If the existing eligibility criteria is met, a 
notification is generated. The Council is then notified of new applicants and officers 
review the information provided in order to decide if applicants can be added onto 
the register. The Council does not (as a general rule) verify declarations, however, 
officers do from time to time, carry out further investigations where it is considered 
the need arises. However the addition of the local eligibility tests will add to the cost 
of administering the Register.

4.25 Officers have reviewed the process for administering applications to join the register 
in light of the proposed local eligibility tests. Having regard to the estimated time 
taken to register a new individual and the average cost per hour of the officers 
responsible for the process, the total cost of the registration process for individuals  
is estimated at £25. It is therefore proposed that a £25 fee should be chargeable in 

4 The Town and Country Planning, England – The Self-build and Custom Housebuilding (Time for Compliance and Fees) 
Regulations 2016

Page 11



- 8 -

respect of new applications to enter the Register (both Part 1 and Part 2).  It is 
proposed that the fee will come into effect from 31 October 2018. 

4.26 Fees charged by other authorities currently range from £16 to £350 to enter the 
Register (Part 1 and Part 2). Some (but not all) charge a smaller fee if the applicant 
is eligible to enter Part 2 of the Register (given that authorities need only have 
regard to Part 2 of the Register and the duty under S2A of the Act does not apply).

4.27 Applications to join the self-build register may be submitted by both individuals and 
associations. Applications from associations could contain a considerable number 
of applicants to assess (e.g. a recent application was submitted seeking land for 
1,000 self-build plots). To ensure that the Council covers its reasonable costs it is 
proposed that a £25 fee will be charged for a new association to enter onto the 
register plus £10 for each individual within the association excluding the lead 
individual. 

4.28 The proposed introduction of fees for applicants to enter the Register was not 
subject to public consultation, as it is on a cost recovery basis only.

4.29 Fee to remain on the Register: It is proposed that individuals who are on Part 1 of 
the Register will be required to pay an annual fee of £15 to remain on the Register, 
payable on the anniversary of their registration. The fee of £15 will apply to 
associations on the Register and £10 for each individual within that association.

4.30 The regulations do not allow for applicants who are entered onto Part 2 of the 
Register to be charged an annual fee to remain on the Register.

4.31 The fee will be chargeable upon the first anniversary of their registration or on 31 
October 2018 if they have already been on the Register for a period of a year or 
longer.  

4.32 Justification for introducing fees: The principle benefit of introduction fees will be 
to enable the Council to recover its reasonable costs for administering the Register.  
It is considered that introducing a fee will have a number of ancillary impacts: 

 It should help to ensure that only applicants who are genuinely interested in a 
project in Welwyn Hatfield apply in the first instance – this would help to 
ensure that the Register is a better reflection of true demand and of the need 
to grant suitable development permission to meet that demand;

 Introducing a fee to remain on Part 1 of the Register, would allow the Council 
to undertake an annual re-registration process. Applicants who are no longer 
seeking a plot of land in the borough or have subsequently decided not to 
pursue a self-build project are unlikely to pay a fee to remain on the Register. 
The authority may remove an entry from the register if it considers that an 
individual (or any member of an association) is no longer eligible for entry in 
the register. 

4.33 Monitoring of fees: The recommended fees for entering onto and remaining on the 
Register are best guess estimates based on the experience of administering the 
registration process to date. Officers will monitor the registration process once local 
eligibility tests are implemented. If an increase in fees is required to ensure 
reasonable cost recovery a report will be brought back to Members seeking 
authorisation to increase the fees. 

Page 12



- 9 -

5. Next Steps 

5.1 The local eligibility criteria for new applicants joining the Register will apply from 31    
October 2018, subject to approval by Cabinet.

5.2 The fees set out in Section 4 above will apply from 31 October 2018 subject to 
agreement by Full Council.

6. Link to Corporate Priorities

6.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Business Plan 2018-2021, 
particularly:

 Priority 3 – Meet the borough’s housing needs; 

 Priority 4 - to help to build a strong local economy; 

 Priority 5 - engaging with our communities and provide value for money.

7. Legal Implication(s)

7.1 Self-build and Custom Housebuilding is governed by primary legislation, the Self-
build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015 (the Act), as amended by the Housing 
and Planning Act 2016, and secondary legislation set out in Regulations.

7.2 Subsequent to the introduction of the Act, Regulations came into force on 1 April 
2016. The Housing and Planning Act (May) 2016 then made a set of changes to the 
Act. Subsequently, on 31 October 2016, two new sets of Regulations came into 
force. One set of Regulations had the effect of revoking the earlier April 2016 
Regulations. National Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) was issued in April 2016 
and was updated on 28 July 2017.

7.3 The Council must have regard to the Register when carrying out its functions 
relating to:

 Planning;
 Housing;
 The disposal of any land of the authority; and
 Regeneration.

7.4. In light of the representation received to the consultation of local eligibility conditions 
Counsel Opinion was sought. This representation and the Counsel response is 
summarised in paragraphs 4.7 and 4.8. The conclusion of Counsel was that the 
representation does not raise any issues which prevent the adoption of a local 
connection test. The use of a local connection test is explicitly sanctioned by both 
primary and secondary legislation. 

8. Financial Implication(s)

8.1 Adoption of fee and future implications: The Council may now set a fee on a 
cost recovery basis. Officers have assessed the estimated costs likely to be 
associated with maintaining and managing the Register. It is recommended that the 
set of local eligibility conditions set out in section 4 of this report be applied as part 
of the application process, together with the introduction of the following scale of 
fees:

Page 13



- 10 -

 For individuals to be entered on the Register: £25;

 For associations to be entered on the Register: £25 plus £10 for each 
individual within the association excluding the lead individual;

 For individuals to remain on Part 1 of the Register: £15 per annum (to be 
charged on the anniversary of the first registration date or 31 October 2018 if 
the individual has been on the register a year or longer).

 For associations to remain on the Register: £15 per annum plus £10 for each 
individual within the association excluding the lead individual. 

8.2 The proposed fees will allow for the estimated recovery of the costs to the council of 
administering the Register and will also help to ensure that only people with a 
genuine commitment to building their own home in the borough join the Register.

8.3 The proposal is that on-line payments can be made as part of the registration 
process (initially for individuals only as the applications for Associations are more 
complex and applications are made using a downloadable application form). For 
fees to be charged as part of the renewal process, all those already registered will 
need to be contacted by email on an annual basis. 

8.4 The fees charged will however be reviewed periodically in light of experience of 
operating the registration system. If monitoring indicates that the fees proposed no 
longer covers the Council’s reasonable costs, then Members will be advised 
accordingly with a view to seeking authorisation to increase the fee.

9. Risk Management Implications

9.1 If the Council does not grant sufficient suitable development permissions to meet 
the demand in any one base period, then the Council will fail to meet its Duty. 
However, if action is not taken to introduce local eligibility conditions together with a 
fee to join the Register, then there is a strong possibility that demand may be over-
stated and in discharging its duty, the Council may deliver more planning 
permission that the true level of local demand.  

9.2 The introduction of the local eligibility criteria together with the payment of a fee is a 
new process which has not been tested in conjunction with the registration process. 
A revised on-line registration process will need to be designed and implemented (in 
partnership with Steria), which may pose a risk to the proposed timetable for 
introducing the new criteria and fee.

10. Security and Terrorism Implication(s)

10.1 There are no security and terrorism implications arising directly as a result of this 
report.

11. Procurement Implication(s)

11.1 There are no procurement implications arising directly as a result of this report.

12. Climate Change Implication(s)

12.1 There are no climate change implications arising directly as a result of this report.

13. Policy Implications

Page 14



- 11 -

13.1 Policy SP 7 of the submitted Local Plan states that:

Self-build and Custom Housebuilding: Strategic Development Sites SDS1 (WGC4), 
SDS2 (WGC5), SDS5 (Hat1) and SDS6 (Hat15) should make provision for a 
proportion of serviced plots of land to contribute towards meeting the evidenced 
demand for Self-build and Custom Housebuilding in the borough. Serviced plots of 
land for Self-build and Custom Housebuilding will also be supported on other 
allocated sites or permitted windfall sites where overall, this would not result in an 
over-provision of this type of Housebuilding when compared to the Council's 
supply/demand evidence.

13.2 Self-build is currently exempt from planning obligations or CIL payments to cover 
infrastructure costs or the provision of affordable housing. 

14. Equality and Diversity

14.1 The proposal to introduce local eligibility conditions was subject to an initial 
Equalities Impact Assessments (EIAs) at screening stage. No unjustified negative 
impacts were identified at that time and no issues have been identified through 
public consultation. A full assessment is not considered to be necessary.

Julie Spicer/Bryce Tudball
Planning Policy and Implementation
24 July 2018

Appendices

Appendix A: Table of responses to public consultation on Welwyn Hatfield proposed local 
eligibility criteria. 

Background Papers

 Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015
 Housing and Planning Act 2016
 Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Regulations (Register) 2016
 The Self-build and Custom Housebuilding (Time for Compliance and Fees) 

Regulations 2016

Page 15

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2015/17/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/22/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2016/105/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2016/1027/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2016/1027/contents/made


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 Table of responses to public consultation on Welwyn Hatfield proposed local eligibility criteria

Question 1. Residency

Comments Main issues Changes sought Council response
Introduction of a local connection test could 
be contrary to EU law. 

Last year, in Ireland, it was ruled that local 
planning regulations that gave any sort of 
preference to locals was most likely to be in 
breach of well-established legal precedent.  
Many counties in Ireland have subsequently 
removed their “Local Connection” 
requirement from planning applications.
 
Has the Council WH considered the “Flemish 
Case” and, if so, why does it feel able to 
introduce a local connection test in light of 
this ruling.  
 

The introduction of local eligibility tests in 
Welwyn Hatfield could be contrary to 
European legislation. 

None stated The Council has sought 
Counsel advice in relation to 
the issue raised. The 
conclusion was that the 
representation does not raise 
any issues which prevent the 
adoption of a local connection 
test. The use of a local 
connection test is explicitly 
sanctioned in England by both 
primary and secondary 
legislation. Further, a person’s 
presence on the register is not 
a material planning 
consideration for the purposes 
of determining an individual 
planning application. This 
situation is therefore plainly 
distinguishable from the cases 
that the representation drew 
attention to. 

P
age 17



Question 2. Family Connection

Comments Main issues Changes sought Council Response
None received

Question 3. Employment

Comments Main issues Changes sought Council Response
None received

Question 4. Armed Forces

Comments Main issues Changes sought Council Response
None received

Question 5. Financial Resources

Comments Main issues Changes sought Council Response
None received

P
age 18



1

Part I
Main author: Laura Guy

Executive Member:    
Cllr Mandy Perkins

All Wards

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 9 AUGUST 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE)

RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION ON HERTFORDSHIRE LOCAL FLOOD RISK 
MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2 (LFRMS2)

1 Executive Summary

1.1 As Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) for Hertfordshire, the County Council 
must produce a Local Flood Risk Management Strategy which sets out how 
local flood risk from surface water, ground water and ordinary watercourses 
(brooks and ditches) will be managed in the county by all the authorities 
involved. This is Hertfordshire’s second Local Risk Management Strategy 
(LRMS) and builds on the information and experience gained over the last five 
years. The LFRMS2 was published for consultation on 18th June for 10 
weeks, until the 24th August 2018. The link to the document and the executive 
summary is set out below.

1.2 The management of local flood risk does not lie with any single organisation 
so the LLFA has to work with other bodies to best manage local flood risk in 
Hertfordshire. Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is defined by legislation as a 
Risk Management Authority and must act consistently with the strategy when 
managing flood risk from ordinary watercourses and have due regard for it 
when carrying out planning and emergency planning functions, which have an 
impact on flood risk.   

1.3 This reports briefly summarises the key principles of the LFRMS2 and sets 
out the key issues in the Council’s response. The response to the specific 
consultation questions is detailed in Appendix A to this report. 

1.4 Broadly, the Council supports the intentions of the strategy and welcomes the 
collaboration with the LLFA to manage local flood risk.  However, there are a 
number of key issues where the strategy could be improved. These include 
ensuring a consistent and effective approach to the maintenance and 
operation of SuDs, refining an approach to ensuring surface water 
management is considered for minor planning applications in high risk areas, 
further exploring funding opportunities from S106 money and better regulating 
development on or above ordinary water courses. The Council make 
recommendations about actions and mechanisms to address these issues 
and aim to work collaboratively with the LLFA to take forward solutions.

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



2

2 Recommendation(s)

2.1 That the Panel agrees the consultation response set out in section 4 and 
Appendix A of this report. 

3 Background 

Roles and responsibilities

3.1 Hertfordshire County Council is the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) in 
Hertfordshire and has powers to manage flood risk from surface water and 
ground water and the lead responsibility for managing flood risk from ordinary 
water courses (brooks, ditches). As part of this duty the County Council has a 
statutory responsibility to develop, maintain, apply and monitor a Local Flood 
Risk Management Strategy (LFRMS) for local flood risk management. Other 
duties as LLFA include:

 Preparing reports and plans to meet legislative requirements.

 Carrying out flooding investigations where appropriate

 Keeping a public register and record of all structures and features 
which have a significant effect on flood risk.

 Regulation of ordinary watercourses.

 Statutory consultee on surface water drainage and flood risk for 
major developments

3.2 After major flooding in 2007 the Pitt Review recommended enhancing local 
leadership. As a result, lead local flood authorities were designated to 
manage flood risk by The Flood and Water Management Act 2010. The 
Environment Agency plays a key role in the management of all sources of 
flooding and is responsible for managing the risk of flooding from main rivers 
and reservoirs.

3.3 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is defined by legislation as a Risk 
Management Authority and as such has responsibility for emergency planning 
in relation to flood incidents. It must act consistently with the strategy when 
managing flood risk from ordinary watercourses and must have due regard to 
it when carrying out other functions which have an impact on flood risk.  

3.4 As a planning authority, there are a number of responsibilities this Council has 
relating to flood risk.  The Council has taken full account of the sequential 
approach to flood risk management in the Local Plan, consistent with national 
policy. It has worked with the Environment Agency and Hertfordshire County 
Council to develop a Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) that has 
helped direct development to the areas with the lowest probability and risk of 
flooding. At the planning application stage flood risk must also be addressed 
and since 2015 the Council has a duty to consult Hertfordshire County 

Page 20



3

Council (as LLFA) in relation to surface water management and flood risk 
from major new development. 

3.5 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council also has powers to carry out works on 
ordinary watercourses and make by-laws relating to ordinary watercourses. 

3.6 Water and Sewerage Companies, Herts Highways and property owners also 
have responsibilities related to local flood risk management.

 Local Flood Risk Management Strategy (LFRMS)

3.7 The first LFRMS was published in 2013 at a time when there was no 
consistent approach to the management of flood risk in the county. Since the 
last strategy the national mapping of predicted surface water flood risk have 
been updated and a number of studies and investigations have been 
undertaken relating to surface water flooding1, flooding events and the 
assessment and monitoring of ordinary watercourses. The LLFA is also now a 
statutory consultee on major planning applications and has worked with 
partners on a range of projects. The LLFA has now been in place for seven 
years and the knowledge and experience gained has informed the strategy 
review. 

4 Explanation

4.1 Hertfordshire County Council is currently consulting on the reviewed Local 
Flood Risk Management Strategy (LFRMS2) until 24 August 2018. The aim of 
the strategy is to give an understanding of local flood risk and the most 
appropriate actions that will be taken to manage it within available resources. 
Additions and changes to the last strategy include:

 Proposals for strategic partnership working on flood risk

 Commitment to publish the best available surface water data

 Updated policies to regulate ordinary watercourses

 Clarification on when flood investigations will be undertaken and the 
function of the register of structures and features 

 New information about funding mechanisms

 Updated policies relating to Sustainable drainage

4.2 The strategy outlines the main sources of flood risk and is informed by the 
second Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment for Hertfordshire, published by the 
LLFA in 2017, which indicated that the main local flood risk is from surface 
water and it is distributed across the county. In Welwyn Hatfield 2,478 
properties are considered to be at high risk (1 in 30 or 3.33% chance in any 
year) and 6,027 properties are deemed to be at medium risk (1 in 100 or 1% 

1 Surface Water Management Plans for Welwyn Hatfield, Three Rivers, Hertsmere and Stevenage are underway 
and due to be complete in 2019.

Page 21



4

chance in any year). Ordinary watercourses and ground water only represent 
a small proportion of reported flooding. 

4.3 The LFRMS2 sets out 6 key principles, which are supported by a series of 
aims, policies and actions. These principles broadly relate to managing and 
reducing flood risk, working in partnership with other bodies and engaging 
with the community, improving resilience and response to flooding and 
managing surface water flood risk in new developments. A brief summary of 
the principles is set out below, including any new policies or actions.

Principle 1: Taking a risk-based approach to local flood risk management

4.4 The overarching aim of the LLFA remains to actively predict and manage 
future flood risk as well as reacting to flood events. 

Principle 2: Working in partnership to manage flood risk in the county

4.5 In the previous strategy, the LLFA set out the intention for partnership work 
and this approach is carried forward into this Strategy. In recent years the 
LLFA has worked with Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council and other 
Hertfordshire local authorities to provide guidance on strategic flood risk 
assessments, develop Surface Water Management Plans, respond to 
planning applications and liaise with Hertfordshire Planning Group. 

4.6 This strategy aims to enhance partnership working by working more with 
community groups and setting up a countywide strategic flood risk partnership 
as a sub group of the Hertfordshire Infrastructure and Planning Partnership 
(HIPP) to address strategic themes arising from the significant development 
planned in and around Hertfordshire.

Principle 3: Improving our understanding of flood risk to better inform decision 
making

4.7 The LLFRS2 aims to improve understanding of the sources of flooding in 
Hertfordshire and use an evidence based approach to prioritise analysis of 
those areas most at risk of flooding. 

The key proposal identified is to improve the accuracy of the Risk of Flooding 
from Surface Water (RoFfSW) mapping by submitting locally derived flood risk 
modelling (such as from the Surface Water Management Plans) to the 
Environment Agency so it can be incorporated into the RoFfSW mapping.

Principle 4: Supporting those at risk of flooding to manage risk

4.7 There will always be some level of flood risk that can’t be solved. So the 
LFRMS2 aims to increase the information provided to communities and 
individuals about how to protect their properties. They intend to achieve this 
aim by working with members of the emergency planning partnership Herts 
resilience (the local Resilience Forum), which is a partnership of 60 
organisations. 

Page 22



5

4.8 There is also detail about the LLFA’s flood investigation process, to enhance 
clarity about the process. 

Principle 5: Working to reduce the likelihood of flooding where possible

4.9 This section primarily relates to ensuring that on the basis of local information, 
funding is directed to areas most at risk and that flood risk management 
projects are prioritised according to cost-benefit. Structures and watercourses 
should be identified, appropriately monitored and maintained.

4.10 To help reduce the likelihood of flooding the LFRMS2 seeks to improve the 
regulation of development above or adjacent to ordinary watercourses 
(OWC), set up a new fund to facilitate the improvement of failing assets that 
could increase flooding on OWCs and address funding challenges by 
exploring alternative approaches to larger surface water projects such as 
natural flood management which aims to slow flow in surface water 
catchments and watercourses. 

Principle 6: Ensuring that flood risk arising from new development is managed

4.11 This section aims to ensure that new development does not increase flood 
risk within or outside a site and that sustainable urban drainage (SuDs) can 
be managed and maintained for the lifetime of the development. It 
incorporates a series of policies from the LLFA’s SuDS Policy Statement, 
which was revised in March 2017 and is currently being used. These are as 
follows:

 Run-off destination- Policy 13: Discharge hierarchy for SuDs

 Peak flow and Volume Control- Policy 14 Runoff rates for greenfield 
sites

 Peak flow and Volume Control- Policy 15 Runoff rates for previously 
developed sites.

 Flood risk within & Outside development- Policy 16- Flooding on or 
from 

 Managing Overland Flow Routes- Policy 17 Development sites along 
natural flow routes and in existing flood risk area

 Maximise resilience and source control-Policy 18: SuDs to be designed 
at or near the surface

 Drainage during construction period- Policy 19: Construction 
arrangements

 Maintenance, structural integrity and construction- Policy 20: SuDs to 
have a design life compatible with the development and in include a 
management and maintenance plan.

Page 23



6

 Sustainability and additional design criteria- Policy 21: SuDs to have 
wider benefits

4.12 As outlined above, since April 2015, the LLFA is a statutory consultee on 
surface water drainage in relation to major planning applications. The LLFA 
does not normally comment on minor application but the LLFMS2 proposes 
working with LPAs to consider when it would be desirable to consult on minor 
applications.

Welwyn Hatfield’s consultation response

4.13 Welwyn Hatfield’s proposed response to the consultation questions is set out 
in Appendix A. This incorporates comments from the Council’s emergency 
planning team relating to responding to flooding. From a planning perspective 
the key issues raised by the LFRMS2 are set out below.

Updated policies relating to Sustainable Drainage

4.14 The SuDs policies are in line with national policy and guidance and should be 
supported. They seek to ensure that new development addresses surface 
water flooding and does not increase the risk of flooding within or outside the 
development.  The recognition of the wider benefits of SuDs in terms of water 
quality and amenity should also be welcomed and is consistent with the 
approach taken in the Local Plan

4.15 Whilst support should be given for the aims of Principle 6 there is concern 
about how effective maintenance regimes will be in practice.  This issue is 
recognised in section 4.6 of the LFRMS2 which identifies that there is a 
significant problem with how to ensure that the SuDs will be maintained when 
they are operated privately. The LLFA provides advice to the LPA on the 
surface water flood risk and ensures surface water from any new 
development is managed using sustainable urban drainage (SuDs). Welwyn 
Hatfield Borough Council is responsible for assessing that the maintenance 
and operational arrangements proposed are suitable for the lifetime of the 
development. Proposals are then enforceable via planning conditions. This is 
an issue that could be helpfully addressed by a consistent approach across 
Hertfordshire. Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council support an approach which 
designates new SuDs onto the LLFA assets register as they are important 
assets for managing local flood risk across the county.  This designation 
would ensure their condition is monitored annually and that the SuDs are 
working effectively. It is suggested that an action to this effect is included in 
the LFRMS2.

4.16 Aim 6c is supported in principle as where possible it is desirable for new 
development to reduce existing flood risk within the local area. However, it is 
not possible to require new development to address existing problems unless 
it can be demonstrated that such measures are necessary for the 
development to occur. Nevertheless there maybe opportunities which new 
development provides to address such risks.

Page 24



7

Consultation on minor planning applications

4.17 Action 9, which seeks to explore the potential for consulting on minor 
applications is consistent with Policy SADM14 of the submission Local Plan. 
Policy SADM14 requires major developments and areas of risk of flooding to 
deliver SUDs. Therefore the intention to define areas where it would be 
desirable to consult on minor applications is supported but more clarity and 
consideration about what this will involve is needed.  If further local modelling 
has been done on these areas, it might be possible to define more accurate 
areas. It would be helpful if this detail was considered in the supporting text 
and also consideration of mechanisms and timescales for taking this forward. 
Surface Water Management Plans could be used in the future to help refine 
higher risk areas where SuDs should be considered for minor developments. 
One mechanism to take the issue forward would be discussing it at the 
countywide strategic flood risk partnership.

Regulation of ordinary watercourses

4.18 The LLFA hold the power for consenting and enforcing ordinary watercourses, 
but Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council holds the powers to manage flood risk 
from ordinary watercourses under S14A of the Land Drainage Act 1991. 
Activity within a watercourse can be regulated by the LLFA (para 4.17) but 
works above or adjacent to the channel are outside the LLFA powers and may 
be regulated at borough level through bye–law provision or if works require 
planning consent. 

4.19 There is not a standardised approach across the county. Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough Council is one of only three Hertfordshire local authorities with bye-
laws in place, but they are over 20 years old and have been mostly 
superseded by legislation. Therefore they are not applied or resourced and as 
such there is no control of development over or adjacent to ordinary 
watercourses other than through the planning system. The LFRMS2 outlines 
that one option to resolve this issue would be to use powers under S13 of the 
Flood Water Management Act for this function to be exercised on our behalf 
by the LLFA.

4.20 As set out in section 5 below there are legal implications associated with such 
a course of action. It is considered that further discussions on the issue of 
bye-laws, possible delegation of power and the best way forward should be 
held to enable the Council to better understand the implications for this 
authority. 

Funding proposals

4.21 It is recognised that, given the challenges of funding, schemes have to be 
delivered on a priority basis. As long as it can be resourced, a small projects 
fund seems a good low-cost approach for ensuring critical flood risk assets 
are repaired and maintained to ensure they reduce local flood risk.

4.22 Availability of funding is clearly a critical factor in ensuring schemes come 
forward to minimise flood risk. Given the scale of development coming 

Page 25



8

forward in Hertfordshire in the future, there may be opportunities to secure 
S106 money to help fund schemes that reasonably relate to the proposed 
development. It could be helpful if a list of potential schemes were made 
available to inform discussions with developers and help local planning 
authorities determine the best strategy available to minimise flood risk at the 
site specific level.

Improved flood map data

4.23 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council supports the incorporation of local surface 
water modelling data into the Environment Agency mapping. However, the 
council recommends that the role of Strategic Flood Risk Assessments is also 
acknowledged as a local resource for ordinary watercourse modelling. This 
data is also submitted to the Environment Agency.

5 Legal Implication(s)

5.1 There are legal implications associated with the issue of ordinary 
watercourses. There is a statutory process to follow if the Council intend to 
revoke the bye-laws. Further legal investigation will be needed to determine 
the correct procedure.  

5.2 Equally, the council can delegate its power/function to another public body. 
This would require a review of the statutory provisions that apply, member 
approval and a service level agreement to be put in place in place.  

6 Financial Implication(s)

6.1 There are no financial implications arising directly in relation to this report. 

7 Risk Management Implications

7.1 There are no risk management implications as a result of this report.

8 Security & Terrorism Implication(s)

8.1 There are no security and terrorism implications arising directly in relation to 
this report.

9 Procurement Implication(s)

9.1 There are no procurement implications arising directly in relation to this report. 

10 Climate Change Implication(s)

10.1 There are no climate change implications arising directly in relation to this 
report. However, proposals to manage local flood risk will help the borough 
adapt to the implications of climate change. 

Page 26



9

11 Policy Implication(s)

11.1 Policy SADM14 of the Local Plan requires SuDs to be delivered for major 
development and other development in high-risk areas. This policy has been 
debated at the Examination and the approach was not raised as a concern. 
This strategy is a mechanism for achieving the policy requirement by 
addressing how requirements for SuDs in some minor applications in high-risk 
areas could BE applied in practice. 

12 Link to Corporate Priorities

13.1 The Council’s Business Plan 2018-2021 contain a corporate priority to 
maintain and to protect and enhance the environment. The production of a 
new strategy to manage local flood risk is broadly aligned with the Council’s 
vision in these areas.  

13 Equality and Diversity

13.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection 
with the proposals set out in this report because it concerns the proposals of 
another local authority.

Laura Guy
Senior Planner – Planning Policy

25th July 2018

Appendices

Appendix A: Response to LFRMS2 consultation questions

Background Papers 

Hertfordshire Local Flood Risk Management Strategy 2 (LFRMS2) Draft, 2018 and 
Executive Summary

https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/about-the-council/consultations/environment/local-
flood-risk-management-strategy-2018.aspx

Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission, 2016

Welwyn Hatfield Strategic Flood Risk Assessment, 2016

Page 27

https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/about-the-council/consultations/environment/local-flood-risk-management-strategy-2018.aspx
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/about-the-council/consultations/environment/local-flood-risk-management-strategy-2018.aspx


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Response to the LFRMS2 consultation questions

1. Taking a risk-based approach to local flood risk management

Q. Do you agree with this approach?
Yes, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council support the overarching approach taken by 
the LLFA. The LLFA has been a key stakeholder in the development of the Local 
Plan, helping to ensure that future development in the plan is directed to areas with 
the lowest probability of flooding, taking climate change into account.  By providing 
data and advice, the LLFA has informed the development of the Strategic Flood Risk 
Assessment, a key part of the evidence base underpinning the Local Plan. As a 
statutory consultee for major development, the LLFA also plays an important role at 
managing flood risk at planning application stage. At a more strategic level, the 
development of the Surface Water Management Plan for Welwyn Hatfield, which is 
currently underway, will increase information to help address surface water flood risk 
in the borough.

Q. Are there any specific actions not described in the strategy that the LLFA or 
other RMAs should be taking to address this?

Not under this principle, additional actions are suggested elsewhere and this is set 
out in the responses below, where relevant.
Q. Any other views and comments on this section?

No

2. Working in partnership to manage flood risk in the county

Q. Should a different approach to partnership working be taken to what is 
outlined and proposed?

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council support the approach to partnership work, 
particularly given the legislative requirement for coordination between relevant 
organisations responsible for managing flood risk. The Council support Action 1 to 
work with community groups and consider there is a work stream that could usefully 
be pursued by the local resilience forum (LRF). However, the LLFRS2 should make 
specific mention of the need for approaches to engage and manage spontaneous 
volunteers, who may wish to assist before, during and after flood events. It would be 
useful if the example of the Red Cross Community Reserve was mentioned, as this 
is a new scheme that has significant potential benefits. Also the Council would like a 
LRF task and finish group set up to develop county side practice around 
spontaneous volunteers. 

Q.  Are there any other partners who would be appropriate to involve in a 
strategic partnership?

Yes, it would be helpful to include a representative from the Local Resilience Forum, 
to ensure that the response to flooding is adequately considered. 

Page 29



Q. Any other comments and views on this section?
No
Q. Are there any circumstances where multi-beneficial (as far as possible) flood-

risk management solutions would not be appropriate?
No comment
Q. Any other views and comments on this section?

No

3. Improving our understanding of flood risk to better inform decision making

Q. Other than recording and investigating flooding and updating the RoFfSW 
mapping is there any other information that would be of benefit?

Alongside analysis of fluvial flood risk, Strategic Flood Risk Assessments undertake 
local watercourse modelling and take account of climate change. Therefore they 
should be acknowledged in the strategy as an important resource on flooding 
information. OWC modelling is also submitted to the Environment Agency.

Q. Is the level of flood investigation described appropriate?
No concerns with the level of flood investigation.
Q. Is the approach based on prioritising areas in Surface Water Management 

Plans (SWMPs) for further investigation appropriate?
The areas in SWMPs are areas identified at most risk of surface water flooding on 
the basis of the national mapping and flood event data. Given this evidence based 
approach and challenges with funding it seems a sensible approach to prioritise 
these areas for further investigation.

Q. What information should the LLFA publish?
Any information published should be clearly explained to ensure the date can be 
correctly interpreted.
Q. Any other comments? 
No

Principle 4: Supporting those at risk of flooding to manage risk

Q. What information do be people need?
Q. What might this look like?
Q. What kind of information is most useful and effective?

Page 30



As set out in the LFRMS2 it is helpful if information about flood risk is published for 
the community, including how people can best to protect their property. At the very 
least accessible, transparent information is needed online.
Q. Do you agree with the approach that investigations only need to identify the 

relevant RMA and that the decision to investigate in more depth should be 
with the relevant RMA?

No concerns with this approach.

Principle 5: Working to reduce the likelihood of flooding where possible

Q.  Would the proposal for a small projects fund be an effective use of public 
resources?

As long as it can be resourced, a small project fund seems a good low-cost 
approach for ensuring critical flood risk assets are repaired and maintained to ensure 
they reduce local flood risk.
Q. What information would be most useful to facilitate this?
No specific comment
Q.  Is the scheme and funding prioritisation methodology that is described in the 

strategy appropriate?
Availability of funding is clearly a critical factor in ensuring schemes come forward to 
minimise flood risk. Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council recognise that schemes have 
to be delivered on a priority basis. Given the scale of development coming forward in 
Hertfordshire in the future, there may be opportunities to secure S106 money to help 
fund schemes that reasonably relate to the proposed development. It could be 
helpful if a list of potential schemes were made available to inform discussions with 
developers and help local planning authorities determine the best strategy available 
to minimise flood risk at the site specific level.
Q. Any other comments?
No

6. Ensuring that flood risk arising from new development is managed 
appropriately.

Q. Are the requirements for SuDs and OWCs appropriate?
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council generally support the SuDs policies. These are in 
line with national policy and guidance, which seeks to ensure that new development 
addresses surface water flooding and does not increase flooding within or outside 
the development.  The recognition of the wider benefits of SuDs in terms of water 
quality and amenity is also welcomed and is consistent with the approach taken in 
the Local Plan
The Council support the first two aims for Principle 6, as they reiterate national 
planning policy and guidance which seeks to ensure new development addresses 

Page 31



flood risk, does not increase risk elsewhere and that appropriate operation and 
maintenance regimes are in place for SuDs.   
However, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is concerned with how effective 
maintenance regimes can be achieved in practice. Section 4.6 of the LFRMS2 
identifies that there is a significant problem with how to ensure that the SuDs will be 
maintained when they are operated privately. The LLFA provides advice to the LPA 
on the surface water flood risk and ensures surface water from any new 
development is managed using sustainable urban drainage (SuDs). Planning 
Authorities are responsible for assessing as part of the planning application process 
that the maintenance and operational arrangements proposed are suitable for the 
lifetime of the development and the advice given by the Local Lead Flood 
Management Authority is key to this assessment. Proposals are then enforceable via 
planning conditions but require regular monitoring. This is an issue that could be 
helpfully addressed by a consistent approach across Hertfordshire. Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough Council support an approach which designates new SuDs onto the LLFA 
assets register as they are important assets for managing local flood risk across the 
county.  This designation would ensure their condition is monitored annually. It is 
suggested that an action to this effect is included in the LFRMS2.
Q. Should the LLFA work with district councils to ensure that bylaws are in place 

across the county allowing development near or over watercourses to be 
regulated? Should the LLFA seek to do this if necessary through a transfer of 
powers from district council RMAs?

The Council would be happy to hold further discussions on the issue of bye-laws, 
possible delegation of power and the best way forward so that it can better 
understand the implications of such a proposal.

Q. Should the LLFA consider designation of SuDs features to maintain 
awareness of functions and responsibilities?

Will clearly have resource implications but seems a sensible approach. See 
response to question above relating to the management of SuDs.
Q. Where possible, new development should contribute to reducing any existing 

flood risk within the local area, is this a reasonable requirement?
This is supported in principle as where appropriate. However, it is not possible to 
require all development to address existing problems only where such measure can 
be argued to reasonably relate to the development proposed. The benefit of early 
discussions at the pre-app stage may be that such issues can be discussed and 
agreed early in the design stage.
Q. Any other views?
Action 9, which seeks to explore the potential for consulting on minor applications is 
consistent with Policy SADM14 of the submission Local Plan. Policy SADM14 
requires major developments and areas of risk of flooding to deliver SUDs. Therefore 
the intention to define areas where it would be desirable to consult on minor 
applications is supported but more clarity and consideration about what this will 
involve is needed.  If further local modelling has been done on these areas, it might 
be possible to define more accurate areas. It would be helpful if this detail was 
considered in the supporting text and also consideration of mechanisms and 
timescales for taking this forward. Surface Water Management Plans could be used 

Page 32



in the future to help refine higher risk areas where SuDs should be considered for 
minor developments. One mechanism to take the issue forward would be discussing 
it at the countywide strategic flood risk partnership.

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Main author: Vikki Hatfield
Executive Member: Cllr S Boulton
Hatfield Wards

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 9 AUGUST 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES)

HATFIELD PARKING PROJECT - UPDATE

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The Council has added a project to the Capital Work Programme, to seek planning 
approval for the construction of a multi-storey car park (MSCP) in The Common, 
Hatfield. This will release other sites within the town centre which have been 
highlighted as development opportunities by the multi-agency Visioning Group as 
part of the Hatfield 2030+ project.

1.2 The sites, which have been highlighted for development, are mainly surface car 
parks and the creation of the MSCP will enable these to be developed.

1.3 To minimise displacement during construction, a temporary upper deck will be 
installed at Lemsford Road car park, which will provide up to 100 of the 148 parking 
spaces that will be lost from The Common car park.

1.4 Consultations have begun with residents in the three areas surrounding the town 
centre, with the view of introducing restrictions in time for the construction to start 
on the MSCP. This report sets out the result of the initial consultation and provides 
a recommendation on how to proceed.

1.5 Results, do not match the number of forms submitted, as residents have an option 
to select more than one option. 

1.6 Consultation still needs to take place with the businesses in the town centre, as 
the car parks situated in the town centre will need to amend the current restrictions, 
before the construction of the MSCP begins in The Common. This car park is the 
main short stay car park for visitors to the town centre.

2 Recommendation(s)

2.1 The Panel recommend to Cabinet to proceed with progressing resident parking 
schemes and verge protection orders to the formal stage in the Lemsford Road 
area.

2.2 Recommend to Cabinet to proceed with progressing resident parking schemes 
and verge protection orders to the formal stage in the French Horn Lane area.

2.3 That the Panel recommend to Cabinet to proceed with progressing resident 
parking schemes and verge protection orders to the formal stage in the Aldykes 
area.

Page 35

Agenda Item 9



2.4 The Panel note the risks as indicated in 6.1 – 6.3 and recommend to Cabinet to 
proceed.

3 Explanation

3.1 During January – May 2018, residents and businesses in three areas of Hatfield 
have been consulted on options for parking restrictions in their roads. The three 
areas are:

1. French Horn Lane
2. Lemsford Road
3. Aldykes

The first two areas were initially consulted at the beginning of February as they 
were already on the Council’s Parking Services work programme. Cabinet later 
that month approved the inclusion of Aldykes within the consultation area due to 
the close proximity to the town centre. (Appendix A).

The residents had a number of options to choose from:

 Do nothing, leave things as they are
 Single yellow lin
 Resident parking permit scheme

If residents selected either single yellow lines or resident parking permit scheme,
They then had options for the days and hours they wanted these to operate.

3.2 In addition to the consultation letter, two public engagement events were held at 
The Hub, White Lion House on the 15 February and the 23 March of this year. 
Along with press releases, social media was also used in an effort to reach as 
many residents in Hatfield as possible.

3.3 Also enclosed with the information letter and survey form, were plans of proposed 
junction protection (in the form of double yellow lines). Residents were asked to 
mark the drawing and/or add comments on the survey form if they felt these 
needed to be extended or reduced.

3.4 There were also drawings which proposed to introduce a verge and footway (which 
include dropped kerbs) traffic regulation order. The areas where marked in green 
on the plan. Residents were asked to comment on both of these plans to advise if 
areas had been missed or needed to be included.

3.5 The response rate was lower than the Council had hoped for, with less than 20% 
of residents responding in some roads. Therefore, another ‘chaser’ letter was sent 
to residents in those roads, which were less than 20% to try and encourage them 
to respond. The final results (Appendix B).

French Horn Lane area

3.6 Beaconsfield Court, Beaconsfield Road and Bury Road will be treated separately 
as these are in an industrial area. Further, some of this area is classed as private 
land and may limit what the Council can do to improve the parking in this area for 
the businesses and local workers.

Page 36



3.7 There are some roads which have an existing single yellow line which operates 
Monday-Friday, 8-10am. The majority of responses from residents in Cranborne 
Road and Endymion Court indicate that they are satisfied with their current single 
yellow line restriction and do not want to fundamentally change this, except for 
some double yellow line junction protection, where single lines are currently. In 
other roads in the French Horn lane area the residents have requested double 
yellow lines.

3.8 Residents have requested some areas to be investigated to see whether any 
additional parking space can be created. This will be looked into, however it is 
doubtful that there are many, if any, which would be feasible. It is believed if 
restrictions were to be introduced, then the space created by the removal of non-
resident vehicles would provide adequate parking for residents and their visitors.

3.9 As you can see from the residents who have responded, the majority have opted 
for a resident parking permit scheme to operate Monday – Friday, 8am – 6pm 
(Appendix C).

Lemsford Road area

3.10 There are a number of roads, which are classified as highway, but maintained at 
private expense. Some roads have a private company that manages their parking 
enforcement therefore, they have been removed from the consultation:

 Walsingham Close
 Ashley Court
 St Lukes Court
 Mabley House

3.11 Other roads were included at the request of residents, these were Harmony Close 
and The Minims. The majority response from residents opted for the parking to 
remain as it is in these two locations. Any restrictions, which are introduced, will 
be monitored and if residents report displacement they will have a further 
opportunity to be consulted.

3.12 Lemsford Road is a heavily used road and is also a bus route into the town centre. 
During the day the road is used by local workers, it is understood who work at the 
Business Park. The majority of residential properties on here have access to off 
street parking. The Council would be reluctant to remove parking off this road 
completely, but there does need to be some changes to the current restrictions. 
This could be achieved by extending the junction protection (double yellow lines). 
Also, residents have requested that the bus stops are marked out and restricted 
as the buses struggle to stop due to the amount of parked cars. The Council will 
include this in our proposals and liaise with the Public Transport Unit at County.

3.13 Residents in this area have requested some roads to be investigated to see 
whether any additional parking space can be created. This will be looked into, 
however, it is doubtful that there are many, if any, which would be feasible. It is 
believed, if restrictions were to be introduced then the space created by the 
removal of non-resident vehicles would provide adequate parking for residents and 
their visitors.

3.14 As you can see from the residents who have responded and live closer to the town 
centre and the Galleria, the majority have opted for a resident parking permit 
scheme to operate Monday – Saturday, 8am – 6pm. However, the response from 

Page 37



the majority of residents who live further away have opted for Monday – Friday, 
8am – 6pm (Appendix D).

Aldykes area

3.15 This area returned the most completed forms, with 30%. Residents in this area 
currently do not have a significant concern with non-residential parking. However, 
they did report that there isn’t enough parking available for residents in most roads. 
It is not unusual to see vehicles parked on verges and pavements, or bumping the 
kerbs to parking within the boundary of their private property.

3.16 This area along with the other two areas will be investigated to see whether there 
are options for creating more communal space.

3.17 There are two distinct areas within Aldykes, at the bottom close to Woods Avenue 
there is a cluster of roads Beech Close, Birch Drive, Firs Close, Maple Close, Elm 
Drive and Sycamore Avenue, along with part of Briars Lane. Apart from school 
traffic congestion, it was thought that they would not want to make any changes to 
the current parking arrangements. However, most of these roads (apart from Firs 
Close, Maple Close and Briars Lane) have indicated that they would like a resident 
parking permit scheme to operate Monday-Friday, 8am-6pm. A number of 
comments received from this area did mention parents parking on pavements and 
verges, this would be addressed by the Verge and Footway Order (VPO).

3.18 During the consultation some residents in Woods Avenue contacted the Council 
with a number of concerns. They didn’t feel the proposals extended far enough 
and Woods Avenue should have been included. Also, some resident who did not 
have access to off-street parking on Woods Avenue parked on roads, which were 
included, such as Sycamore Avenue and Briars Lane and what would be done to 
ensure these residents would still have access if the restrictions changed. 
Consideration will be given to this concern.

3.19 The properties on Chantry Lane are managed privately and reports of parking on 
this road prevents the waste and recycling collections for Cavan Court and Chantry 
Court. The Council will liaise with the management companies with a view to 
improve access. 

3.20 The majority response from residents in Dellfield Road and Oaklands Wood 
indicated they were in favour of a resident parking permit scheme operating 
Monday – Saturday, 8am – 6pm. Comments were made regarding the Doctors 
surgery at the bottom of Dellfield Road and arrangements would be needed to 
accommodate patients visiting the surgery.

3.21 The response from the rest of the area was a bit of mixture, with some roads 
indicating in favour of restrictions and other very much wanting to leave the 
restrictions as they are (Appendix E).

4 Legal Implication(s)

4.1 TROs are created under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Consultations 
follow a statutory legal process as set out in The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders 
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996. No other legal implications 
are inherent in relation in to the proposals in this report.

4.2 Due to only a 20% response, it would be unlikely that the Council’s parking 
proposals would be progressed. However, the displacement consequences of the 

Page 38



MSCP on local parking is a potential possibility. , The Council will advertise the 
proposals and could reserve making the decision on the traffic regulation orders 
for the three areas until it is known when the construction starts. The Council will 
have two years from the date that the formal notice of proposal is published in the 
local paper to introduce the proposed restrictions. Any objections received could 
be considered at any time during that two year period.

5 Financial Implication(s)

5.1 The cost of TRO works recommended in this report will be funded through existing 
Environment Services revenue budgets.

5.2 Dependent on the investigation on possible parking improvements, additional 
capital funding may need to be applied for, in addition to the current 2018/19 capital 
budget. 

6 Risk Management Implications

6.1 Changing the parking conditions in the above mentioned roads could generate 
both negative and positive publicity. Some parking will likely displace into nearby 
roads and is likely to move to area outside the scope of this project. 

6.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first six months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or parking 
displacement will be recorded. Any significant issues discovered during the 
monitoring period will be dealt with as part of the review process.

6.3 There are a number of private roads which have yet to be adopted by Hertfordshire 
County Council (HCC). Restrictions in neighbouring roads increases the likelihood 
of displacement of vehicles parking into these roads. If this eventuality happened, 
then the Council would need to consider any practical and legally allowable 
solutions to assist residents in these roads, especially if the solution cannot be a 
TRO.

7 Security & Terrorism Implications

7.1 There are no security & terrorism implications inherent in relation to the 
proposals in this report.

8 Procurement Implications

8.1 There are no procurement implications inherent in relation to the proposals in this 
report.

9 Climate Change Implication(s)

9.1 There are no climate change implications inherent in relation to the proposals in   
this report.

10 Link to Corporate Priorities

10.1   I confirm that the subject of this report is linked to three of the Council’s Corporate 
Priorities:

Page 39



 Protect and enhance the environment – Deliver effective parking services;

 Help build a strong local economy – Revitalise our town centres and other 
shopping precincts and;

 Engage with our communities and provide value for money

11      Equality and Diversity

11.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

Name of author Vikki Hatfield 01707 357555
Title Parking and Cemetery Services Manager
Date 30 July 2018

Background papers to be listed (if applicable)  

Cabinet Report – 7 November 2017

Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel report – 14 December 2017

Page 40



 

  

Ka Ng 
Executive Director, Resources 

Environment & Cultural Services 
 

Reply To: address as below                                                                                                                                 
Date: February 2018  

Direct Tel: 01707 357000 
Email: contact-WHC@welhat.gov.uk 

  
 
 
 
 
Dear Resident, 
 

Parking proposals Hatfield Town Centre and surrounding roads 
 
We are writing to seek your views on the parking options in roads around the town centre, as we 
continue to progress Hatfield regeneration plans. 
 
A framework developed by a number of local partners has identified the need for a multi-storey 
car park to release key space. Without a multi-storey, over a third of the town centre will 
continue to be taken up with surface-level car parks, considerably limiting the options available 
to provide new homes, retail and leisure facilities.   
 
£6m of Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) funding has been secured by the 
council in support of town centre transformation and we hope to begin work on the multi-storey 
early next year, and to see it operational by the end of 2019. 
 
The multi-storey is set to be built on The Common car park and although it will provide around 
500 new spaces, there will be a temporary loss of approximately 150 parking spaces during its 
construction. This will impact businesses, shoppers and local workers, and it’s essential 
we collect your views on how we can best protect residents living nearby from a possible 
increase in congestion and safety issues, including vehicle parking on corners and 
junctions. 
 
One way we hope to alleviate the displacement of vehicles from The Common to surrounding 
residential roads is by providing a temporary deck on Lemsford Road car park, creating around 
100 extra spaces during the multi-storey build. 
 
However, even with these measures taken into consideration, the long term regeneration of 
Hatfield town centre may have an impact on parking in nearby residential roads. The council has 
not made any decisions about introducing charging for the multi-storey car park and it will be 
considered as part of our budget setting process in future years. However, the multi-storey car 
park will have limited waiting restrictions in place, similar to what is currently available in the 
town centre.  
 
Potential parking improvement options 
 
There are two potential options to help improve parking in your area: 

1. A single yellow line prevents any vehicle from parking for the days and times it 
operates, including residents and visitors. The introduction of a single yellow line 
restriction in some locations may fail to solve the problem, and could make matters worse 
for residents. 
 Appendix A

Page 41



 
 

2. Many roads have little or no off-road parking provision and in these areas we are 
recommending a resident permit parking scheme. This is the only way the environment 
can be managed and still allow parking for both residents and their visitors within the 
zone. They have proved to be a popular choice and many such schemes are now in 
operation throughout the borough.  All money received from resident permit parking 
schemes is used solely to fund their design, maintenance and enforcement. More 
information on resident permit parking schemes, including a list of current charges for 
permits, is included with this letter. 
 

Please use the table in the survey sheet to indicate your support for these options, which days of 
the week, and the times of operation you would prefer; e.g. Monday to Friday, 9am-5pm. 
 
We have also enclosed detailed plans, outlining the existing road restrictions and new double 
yellow lines proposed on junctions to prevent dangerous or obstructive parking. Where junction 
protection is highlighted to improve road safety, a minimum of 10 metres of double yellow lines 
would be installed on each arm of the junction. This may be increased depending on the layout 
of the junction. Double yellow lines are enforceable 24 hrs a day, 7 days a week.  
  
Please mark the plans if you feel the restrictions should be extended or if you think additional 
protection is required. A box is included on the returns sheet for additional comments or 
suggestions. 
 
The council has also received many complaints from across the borough about damage to grass 
verges and footways caused by vehicles – and parking on footways blocking pedestrian and 
disabled access. As part of this project, the council is also seeking to introduce a verge and 
footway protection order. The areas marked in green on the attached plans are subject to 
confirmation with Herts County Council. If you think a public verge/footpath has been missed or 
a private verge/footpath mistakenly included in the plans, please mark the plan and send it back 
with your survey form.  
 
In combination with the above, officers will also carry out a thorough investigation to see if there 
are any suitable areas which could be converted into more parking space. This may be achieved 
by removing part of the verge or green area to construct parking bays, although trees and 
existing street furniture, such as lamp columns, may have a bearing on the result of the 
investigation. 
 
There will be someone available from Parking Services at the Hub, in White Lion House on the 
23rd March 2018 between 12noon and 7pm, if anyone would like to pop in and discuss the 
proposals further. 
 
Please return your completed survey sheets in the envelope provided to Parking Services 
by the 5 March 2018. If you have any questions regarding the content of this letter, please call 
us on 01707 357000 and a member of the parking team will return your call. 
 
 
Full details of the Hatfield Town Centre consultation can also be found on the council’s website: 
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/aldykesarea   
 
Sent on behalf of 

Parking Services 
 
 
 

 Appendix A
Page 42

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/aldykesarea


 
 

 
Resident Permit Parking Schemes 
 
Please read and consider the following information on Resident Permit Parking Schemes 
(RPPS).  
 
The only type of parking restriction which can allow parking for both residents and their 
visitors, but prevent non-residents from parking, is called a Resident Permit Parking 
Scheme. 
 
Permits 

 Vehicles parked on residents’ driveways or inside garages on private property do not 
need to display permits or vouchers. 

 Residents who are Blue Badge Holders and own or drive a vehicle will not be charged 
for the first permit. Any additional permits to that address will be charged at the 
second permit rate and so forth. 

 Professional carers should be instructed to apply for their own Doctor/Health Visitor 
Permits if attending addresses within a resident permit parking zone.  

 
Vouchers 

 Residents providing proof of receiving a state pension may buy vouchers at a 50% 
discounted rate.  

 Residents should provide visitor vouchers for tradesmen, builders etc.  
 
Current charges for Permits and Vouchers 
 
First permit - £25 per year 
Second permit - £40 per year 
Third or subsequent permits - £60 per year 
Motorcycle permit - £10 per year 
Business permit - £225 per year 
Doctors/Health Visitor permits - £20 per year 
 
Visitor Vouchers - £10 for 20 day vouchers 
 
Other important information: 

 Residents and visitors must remember to display permits and visitor vouchers during 
the hours of the restriction. 

 Permits and visitor vouchers are not interchangeable and must be used in conjunction 
with the area for which they were issued. 

 Any vehicle not displaying a valid permit or visitor voucher may receive a Penalty 
Charge Notice (PCN). 

 Vehicles must not park on grass verges or pavements. Any vehicle parked in these 
areas may receive a PCN. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Appendix A

Page 43



 
 

 
 

Please return this form using the envelope provided to Parking Services, The Campus, 
Welwyn Garden City, AL8 6AE, by 5 April 2018. 

 
Name 

 
Title -             Forename -                                  Surname -  

 
Address 

 

 
Telephone 

 
Home -                                                         Mobile -  

 
Email 

 

 

Please reply to the below statements: YES NO 

 
Do nothing, keep things as they are 

  

 
I would like a single yellow line (prevents parking by all vehicles) 

  

 
I would like a resident permit parking scheme (restricted to residents and their 
visitors only) 

  

 
Preferred operating days (Please circle one preferred day) 
 
                                 Monday to Friday                                            Monday to Saturday  

 
Preferred operating times (Please circle one preferred time) 
 
              9am-11am                                9am-5pm                                   8am-6pm          

Please enter any comments or suggestions. Thank you 

 Appendix A
Page 44



 

  

Ka Ng 
Corporate Director, Resources 

Environment & Cultural Services 
 

Reply To: address as below                                                                                                                                 
Date: 25 May 2018 
Our Ref: MD/12099  

Direct Tel: 01707 357000 
Email: contact-WHC@welhat.gov.uk 

  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Resident / Occupier, 
 

Update - Parking proposals in Hatfield Town Centre and surrounding roads 
 
On 26 January 2018 the Council wrote to residents in the French Horn Lane area of Hatfield seeking 
their views on the parking options in and around the town centre as we continue to progress Hatfield 
regeneration plans. 
 
We are writing to residents in some roads once more as the number of replies from those particular 
roads totalled less than 20%. We are offering those residents a further opportunity to make their 
views known on what, if any, parking improvement options they may wish for their locality. We would 
like to thank those residents who have already replied to the initial consultation. There is no need for 
them to reply further. 
 
As a reminder, the Council will be installing double yellow lines (junction protection) on junctions as a 
safety measure to prevent dangerous or obstructive parking. If you feel the proposed locations need 
to be extended due to particular visibility issues, then please highlight exactly where on the enclosed 
plans, and return with the completed survey form. 
 
The Council also intend to implement a verge and footway protection order that will enable the 
enforcement team to issue parking tickets to vehicles which are parked on the pavement, verge and 
other green areas. 
In addition to the above, investigations are continuing to see if there are any suitable locations such 
as verges and other green areas, which could be converted to provide more parking space. 
Residents are also offered the opportunity of additional measures for their roads by choosing from 
the options of a resident permit parking scheme, yellow line restrictions, or to remain as they are. 
 

Please return your completed survey sheets in the envelope provided to Parking Services by Friday 
15 June. If you have any questions regarding the content of this letter, please call us on  
01707 357000 and a member of the parking team will return your call. 
 
Full details of the French Horn Lane area parking consultation (including the letter of 26 January 
2018) can be found at http://www.welhat.gov.uk/frenchhornlanearea 
 
 
Sent on behalf of 
Parking Services 
  

 

Appendix B
Page 45

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/frenchhornlanearea


 

 
 

Please return this form using the envelope provided to Parking Services, The Campus, 
Welwyn Garden City, AL8 6AE, by Friday 15th June 2018. 

 
Name 
 

Title -                         Forename -                                  Surname - 

 
Address 
 

 

 
Telephone 
 

 
Home -                                                         Mobile -  

 
Email 
 

 

 

Please choose from the statements below: YES NO 

Do nothing, keep things as they are   

I would like a single yellow line (prevents parking by all vehicles)   

I would like a resident permit parking scheme (restricted to residents and their 
visitors only) 

  

Preferred operating days (Please circle one preferred choice) 
 
                                 Monday to Friday                                            Monday to Saturday  
 

Preferred operating times (Please circle one preferred choice) 
 
              9am-11am                                9am-5pm                                   8am-6pm    
        

Please enter any comments or suggestions. 

 

Appendix B
Page 46



French Horn Lane – Consultation results 

ROAD PROPERTIES REPLIES % 
DO 

NOTHING SYL RPPS MON-FRI MON-SAT 9-11AM 9AM-5PM 8AM-6PM 

                        

Beaconsfield Close 4 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Beaconsfield Road 12 3 25.0 0 3 0 2 0 0 1 1 

Brain Close 64 15 23.4 1 7 9 4 8 4 1 7 

Breaks Road 20 4 20.0 1 1 3 3 1 2 0 2 

Bury Road 11 4 36.4 1 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 

Cranborne Road 19 9 47.4 9 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 

Endymion Court 10 9 90.0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Endymion Road 59 21 35.6 10 4 7 5 5 4 6 1 

French Horn Lane 28 8 28.6 2 0 6 3 2 2 0 3 

Glebeland 38 9 23.7 3 0 6 5 1 1 1 4 

Goldings Crescent 88 11 12.5 3 5 3 5 2 1 0 6 

Howe Dell 59 18 30.5 1 2 15 10 5 5 4 8 

Link Close 8 2 25.0 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 

Link Drive 5 1 20.0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Link Walk 33 3 9.1 1 0 2 2 0 1 0 1 

Old French Horn 
Lane 59 13 22.0 5 4 5 2 2 3 0 4 

Old Rectory Drive 72 23 31.9 2 5 20 14 5 3 4 10 

Onslow Close 25 4 16.0 2 0 2 1 1 0 1 1 

Rectory Gardens 10 2 20.0 0 0 2 1 1 1 0 1 

St Etheldredas Drive 54 16 29.6 5 2 10 6 4 5 0 5 

Wood Close 60 11 18.3 3 1 8 4 4 1 3 4 

Wood Vale 26 5 19.2 0 1 5 1 4 1 1 3 

                        

Total 760 191 25% 59 39 105 70 45 34 22 63 
 

Appendix C

P
age 47



French Horn Lane – Consultation results 

 

Comments received 

  

Complaints about commuter parking 

A small petition received against parking restrictions based on cost (Brian Close) 

Current restrictions are sufficient 

Complaints about school drop off and pick up times 

How will permits work with residents who have full time carers 

People are already are parking on verges and pavements due to the lack of parking in the area 

Request single visitor permit that can be multiple times 

Prefers the 8-10am single yellow line restriction which is in place in other roads, this would be easier for visitors and tradesman  

Parking improvements requested to increase parking provision 

Feels that a two hour restriction would be sufficient to deter commuters 

Limit permits, two per household 

Would like the restriction enforced 24/7 

Requests for free permits for residents 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix C

P
age 48



French Horn Lane – Consultation results 

 Appendix C

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Lemsford Road – Consultation results 

ROAD PROPERTIES REPLIES % 
DO 

NOTHING SYL RPPS MON-FRI MON-SAT 9-11AM 9AM-5PM 8AM-6PM 

                        

Ely Close 51 14 27 3 4 10 3 9 2 1 9 

Harmony Close 35 6 17 4 1 1 1 0 0 0 1 

Jasmine Gardens 80 19 24 6 8 10 11 2 3 2 6 

Lemsford Road 69 17 25 3 6 8 7 4 2 5 5 

Malvern Close 14 5 36 0 0 5 2 3 0 2 3 

Middlefield Road 56 13 24 5 4 4 8 2 4 4 2 

Oak Tree Close  60 15 30 5 4 11 7 5 1 3 8 

Stockbreach Close  102 22 22 8 2 16 6 8 0 6 9 

Stockbreach Road 116 29 25 6 0 20 9 9 0 7 11 

The Minims 31 3 10 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

The Paddock 36 15 42 1 2 12 6 4 3 2 5 

Town Fields  25 2 8 0 1 2 1 1 0 0 2 

Wellands 8 5 63 4 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 

Wellfield Close  31 8 26 2 4 7 1 5 0 3 4 

Wellfield Road 38 8 21 4 1 3 0 4 0 1 3 

Wenham Place 32 8 25 0 2 8 3 5 1 1 6 

Worcester Road 35 16 46 6 1 11 4 8 0 0 11 

                     

Total 888 195 26% 60 42 129 69 70 16 38 85 
 

 

 

 

 

Appendix D

P
age 51



Lemsford Road – Consultation results 

Comments received 

  

How are the restrictions going to be enforced 

Free resident permits and visitor vouchers 

Lemsford Road should be either SYL or DYL for safety 

The bus stops on Lemsford Road have parked vehicles there so the bus finds it difficult to stop and blocks the road 

Residents park on verges and pavement as there is not enough space - Increase parking provsision 

Leave things as they are 

Request further DYLs at junctions to improve visibility 

Shouldn’t have to park in my own street 

Please stop people parking on verges and pavements it is dangerous and the verges are ruined 

Should be enforced 24/7 

Make Stockbreach Road one way 

Bigger issue is after 6pm as this is when all the residents return from work and there are no parking spaces 

Visitors to Greenarces park in our parking bays which limits spaces for the residents 

Wellfield Road – verges have all been churned up. Can anything be done about this? 

Speed bumps to reduce speed as Wellfield Road people race down here 

People visiting and workers at the Doctors surgery all park in our road 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix D

P
age 52



Lemsford Road – Consultation results 

 Appendix D

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E

Aldykes Area – Consultation Results 
 

ROAD PROPERTIES REPLIES % 
DO 

NOTHING SYL RPPS MON-FRI MON-SAT 9-11AM 9AM-5PM 8AM-6PM 

            

Aldykes 153 42 27 14 3 26 9 17 1 4 1 

Beech Close  12 5 42 1 0 3 2 1 0 1 2 

Birch Drive 19 9 47 3 2 4 2 2 0 1 3 

Briars Close 24 8 33 7 0 1 1 0 0 1 0 

Briars Lane 112 28 25 11 4 16 6 7 0 5 10 

Briars Wood  61 16 26 9 3 9 3 3 0 5 3 

Cavan Court 12 2 17 0 2 0 1 1 0 0 2 

Cavendish Place 18 3 17 0 1 3 1 2 1 0 2 

Cedar Road 27 13 48 2 5 9 7 3 2 1 7 

Chantry Court 45 3 7 1 0 2 1 1 0 1 1 

Croft Field 16 4 25 3 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 

Dellfield Road 48 12 25 1 0 10 3 8 1 1 9 

Elm Drive 26 10 38 4 0 6 3 2 0 2 4 

Feather Dell  61 16 26 7 2 9 3 5 0 3 5 

Firs Close 17 7 41 6 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 

Grove Mead  34 7 21 4 1 3 0 3 2 0 2 

Haseldine Meadows 71 28 38 8 2 16 3 13 2 3 10 

Hillcrest 68 21 31 9 5 12 3 5 2 2 4 

Hill Ley 14 4 29 0 1 4 0 4 0 0 4 

Hillside 14 4 29 2 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 

Holliers Way  36 9 25 4 1 2 3 1 3 0 1 

Maple Close  9 3 33 2 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 

Maryland  80 19 24 17 1 6 2 0 0 1 0 

Oak Grove  44 16 36 6 3 9 3 5 0 3 6 

Oaklands Wood 45 14 31 1 8 7 7 2 0 4 5 

Spring Glen  26 6 23 2 3 4 0 2 0 0 2 

Sycamore Avenue 23 14 60 2 0 12 7 5 1 6 4 

Veritys 31 6 39 5 1 1 0 2 0 0 1 

Total 1146 329 30% 131 50 177 71 97 15 44 92 

        

P
age 55



Appendix E

Aldykes Area – Consultation Results 

            

Comments received 

  

Student parking is a real problem 

Remove some of the verge to increase parking provision 

Request allocated parking 

Why should residents pay to park, when this is caused by the University, Galleria and the Business Park 

Support the verge protection order 

Pedestrian crossing needed on Cavendish Way 

Should be enforced 24/7 

There are a large number of HMOs would there be a limited per household? 

Restrictions extended to Bishops Rise and Woods Avenue 

Issues with drop off and pick up times for the school on Woods Avenue 

Some residents in Woods Avenue do not have parking, so park in other roads which are highlighted. Would these residents be 
able to have permits/vouchers 

Make Briars Lane to Hillcrest one way at school times 

During the day isn’t the issue its weekends and evenings as there just isn’t enough parking spaces 

There is a Doctor surgery, workers and patients park in the road all day and this prevent residents from been able to park in 
their road 

DYL added in front of garages to prevent tenants from not been able to access them 

More yellow lines needed at junctions 

People park on the road to the garage areas and this prevents access for tenants, can this be included 

How are the restrictions going to be enforced? 

Would like to see permits restricted to properties in that road otherwise other residents will continue to park in our road 

Limited to two permits per household 

Resident permits the councils way of increasing revenue 

 
 

 

 

 

P
age 56



Appendix E

Aldykes Area – Consultation Results 

 

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 SELF BUILD AND CUSTOM HOUSEBUILDING ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA CONSULTATION
	07a - Appendix A Table of responses to public consultation on Welwyn Hatfield proposed local eligibility criteria

	8 RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION ON HERTFORDSHIRE LOCAL FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2 (LFRMS2)
	08a - Appendix A Response to FRMS2 consultation questions

	9 HATFIELD PARKING PROJECT
	09a - Appendix A - Initial letter - February 2018.docx
	09b - Appendix B - second letter.docx
	09c - Appendix C - FHL.docx
	09d - Appendix D - LR.docx
	09e - Appendix E - Aldykes.docx




